
 

             AGENDA 
          ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL 

November 7, 2016 
7:00 p.m. 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR  97103 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 
4. CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one 
motion unless a member of the City Council requests to have any item considered 
separately.  Members of the community may have an item removed if they contact the City 
Manager by 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
(a) City Council Minutes of 10/3/16 
(b) City Council Minutes of 10/17/16 
(c) Authorization to Purchase Vehicle for Police Department (Police) 
(d) Fiscal Year 2016-17 Exchange Server and Public Safety Server Replacements (Finance) 
(e) Authorization to Request Qualifications to Produce Site Specific Park Plan at Shively and 

McClure Parks (Parks) 
(f) Memorandum of Understanding for Indigent Defense Services (Finance) 

 
6. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the City Council.  
Rather than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience 
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized.  In 
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes. 
(a) Public Hearing and Ordinance Making Certain Determinations and Findings Relating to 

and Approving the First Amendment to the Astor West Urban Renewal Plan (1st reading) 
(Community Development) 

(b) Resolution Amending Fee Schedule for the Astoria Aquatic Center (Parks) 
(c) Aquatic Center Use Agreement between Tongue Point Job Corps Center and the City of 

Astoria (Parks) 
(d) Consultant Services – Library Roof Replacement (Library) 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 
 
8. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

(a) ORS 192.660(2)(h) – Legal Counsel 
(b) ORS 192.660(2)(i)  – Performance Evaluations of Public Officers and Employees 

 

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE DISABLED.  AN INTERPRETER FOR THE 
HEARING IMPAIRED MAY BE REQUESTED UNDER THE TERMS OF ORS 192.630 BY 

CONTACTING JULIE YUILL, CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE, 503-325-5824 
 



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 
 
 
November 3, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF NOVEMBER 7, 2016 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Item 5(a): City Council Minutes 
 

The minutes of the City Council meeting of October 3, 2016 are enclosed for 
review.  Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that Council 
approve these minutes. 

 
Item 5(b): City Council Minutes 
 

The minutes of the City Council meeting of October 17, 2016 are enclosed for 
review.  Unless there are any corrections, it is recommended that Council 
approve these minutes. 

 
Item 5(c): Authorization to Purchase Vehicle for Police Department (Police) 
 

The Police Department proposes purchasing one new patrol vehicle this fiscal 
year which will replace a 2011 Chevy Tahoe 2WD Police Pursuit vehicle.  Funds 
for this purchase are budgeted as a lease payment in the Capital Improvement 
Fund for Fiscal Year 2016-17.  The Finance Department has budgeted spreading 
the purchase and set up of vehicles over two years.  A separate authorization will 
subsequently be requested for the set up and equipment for the vehicle.  It is 
recommended that Council authorize the purchase one Ford Police Interceptor 
Utility vehicle from Gresham Ford in the amount of $29,058.63.   

 
Item 5(d): Fiscal Year 2016-17 Exchange Server and Public Safety Server Replace-

ments (Finance) 
 

iFocus Consulting, Inc., made recommendations and has given quotes for the 
Fiscal Year 2016-17 budget to replace two of the City of Astoria's server 
platforms which have reached end-of-life, as follows: 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Replacement of both servers with cost-effective, manufacturer-supported 
hardware and software solutions provides operation flexibility for a five year time 
frame, maintains and enhances existing capabilities for software solutions, 
provides flexibility for future storage solutions and applications, and provides 
operational continuity, compatibility and flexibility across hardware and software 
solutions with manufacturer supported infrastructure required to process critical 
information for City operations and systems.  Funding for both projects are 
included in the Fiscal Year 2016-17 Capital Improvement budget for iFocus 
Recommended Expenditures.  It is recommended that Council approve the 
purchases and replacement as proposed by iFocus. 

 
Item 5(e): Authorization to Request Qualifications to Produce Site Specific Park Plan 

at Shively and McClure Parks (Parks) 
 

The City of Astoria was awarded the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department 
Local Government Grant of $40,000 to support funding site plans for Shively 
Park and McClure Park and approve the Local Government Grant Program 
Agreement.  At its October 17, 2016 meeting the City Council accepted the grant 
and committed the required 40% match, in the amount of $16,000 cash budgeted 
in the Capital Improvement Fund and in-kind management and administration 
contribution of $11,000.  The tentative project timeline is as follows:  

 
October 2016 ------Notice to proceed from OPRD. 
December 2016 ---Designation of a project manager and procurement of a 

consultant. 
January 2017 ------Project kickoff, public notice of upcoming meeting dates. 
February 2017 -----Initial public meeting to collect input. 
March 2017---------Development of design alternatives. 
April 2017 -----------Public meetings to collect input on design alternatives. 
May 2017 -----------Selection of preferred concepts for McClure and Shively 

Parks; development of implementation and funding strategy. 
June 2017 ----------Adoption of plan documents for McClure and Shively Park. 

 
To stay on track with this tentative timeline, the Parks and Recreation Department 
seeks the City Council’s authorization to request qualifications for a consultant or 
team of consultants specializing in community engagement, gathering, 
consolidating, and prioritizing community input, planning and landscape design 
and/or architecture.  A selection panel comprised of Parks and Recreation  

 
Server Description 

    Quote 
   Amount 

 

• Exchange Server which provides email services to 
all City Departments (initially installed in 2009) .......  

 
$35,574.21 

 

• Hyper-V Server for Public Safety which hosts 
virtual environments providing the active directory, 
file and print services, application servers, SQL 
services, Anti-virus services and other programs 
and services (initially installed in 2010) ....................  

 

 
 
 
 

$22,118.00 



Page 3 of 5 

Department staff, Community Development staff, neighbors of Shively Park, and 
a representative from the Friends of McClure Park will evaluate and rank each 
statement of qualifications submitted.  The consultant will be evaluated and 
ranked based on proven experience, expertise, and technical merit for the 
requested services.  After a preferred consultant is chosen, they will be asked to 
develop a project management plan, budget and schedule for the project.  This 
scope of work will be negotiated with staff.  If an acceptable plan, budget, 
schedule, and contract cannot be developed, the selection panel will meet and 
select another consultant from the original RFQ submittals and restart 
negotiations.  Once a final scope is developed, the contract will be brought to 
Council for consideration.  It is recommended that City Council authorize the 
Parks and Recreation Department to request qualifications to complete site-plans 
at Shively Park and McClure Park.    

 
Item 5(f): Memorandum of Understanding for Indigent Defense Services (Finance) 
 

Staff has prepared an updated Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between 
the City of Astoria and current Indigent Defense Attorney Jerry Widawski for his 
services.  The current MOU became effective February 1, 2010 and no changes 
have been made since that date.  Pursuant to the discussions between Judge 
Kristopher Kaino and the Astoria City Council, adjustment of the MOU is 
necessary to reflect the current and anticipated caseloads.  As more cases have 
been cited to Clatsop County Circuit Court, fewer trials are anticipated in Astoria 
Municipal Court.  The proposed MOU provides for compensation based on 
defendants rather than a flat fee per month.  Funds have been budgeted for the 
current year based on the flat fee and it is anticipated the new agreement will be 
at the same amount or less than is currently budgeted.  The proposed MOU 
becomes effective December 1, 2016.  It is recommended that Council consider 
the revised Memorandum of Understanding for Indigent Defense Services with 
Jerry Widawski. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Item 6(a): Public Hearing and Ordinance Making Certain Determinations and Findings 

Relating to and Approving the First Amendment to the Astor West Urban 
Renewal Plan (1st reading) (Community Development) 

 
The City of Astoria adopted the Astor West Urban Renewal Plan (the “Plan”) in 
December 2002, (Ordinance #02-18). The Plan contains projects which were and 
are intended to assist in stimulating growth in the Urban Renewal Area (the 
“Area”).  As a result of a landslide in 2007, Bond Street has been closed to two 
way traffic.  Only one westbound lane of traffic is allowed limiting east-west traffic 
towards Marine Drive. In addition, water and sewer lines have been rerouted 
above the street.  The Public Works Department commissioned a geotechnical 
analysis completed in August 2015 to study the feasibility of adding a retaining 
wall.  The results of the study concluded that is indeed feasible.  Based on the 
results, the Public Works Department prepared an “order of magnitude” cost 
estimate of $395,000 to construct a retaining wall, repair Bond Street for two way 
traffic, and include low cost traffic calming measures to mitigate potential 
speeding along a narrow street in a dense neighborhood of residential buildings. 



Page 4 of 5 

In March 2016, the Astoria Development Commission (ADC) directed staff to 
initiate a plan amendment study for the Astor West URA.  In August 2016, the 
ADC received an update from city staff and reviewed a potential list of projects to 
fund to support the amended boundary while meeting the objectives of the 
original urban renewal district.  In addition to the street aspect, there are 
underinvested residential properties that potentially need assistance (i.e., grants/ 
loans/technical assistance) to renovate and preserve as affordable housing, 
which is another FY 15-16 Council Goal.  Staff has met with the Community 
Action Team about a targeted pilot program that would offer some form of 
assistance to qualified property owners to renovate multi-family buildings while 
still meeting Development Code design requirements.  

 
The proposed amendment to the Plan would expand the Area to include right of 
way as well as city owned land to widen Bond Street and permit the use of urban 
renewal funds for the new projects to be added in the Plan as identified in Table 
11 of the Report Accompanying the Amendment.  The proposed Amendment 
requires an Ordinance to implement the changes.  The ordinance (Attachment A) 
adopting the Amendment requires the City Council to make certain findings, 
which are listed in the after the “Whereas” paragraph.  These findings are based 
on various documents and events.  It should be noted that there are portions of 
the draft ordinance which will be adjusted for the second reading, based upon 
any testimony received from any governing body of affected taxing districts.  
Additionally, a metes and bounds description will be added to Attachment B prior 
to the second reading.  It is recommended that Council conduct the public 
hearing and hold the first reading of the ordinance. 

 
Item 6(b): Resolution Amending Fee Schedule for the Astoria Aquatic Center (Parks) 
 

The Astoria Aquatic Center partners with the Astoria School District and the 
North Coast Swim Club to provide space within the lap pool for their youth swim 
team members to practice.  The Astoria Aquatic Center’s current lane rental fee 
is $25.00 per lane per hour; however, with daily practices lasting several hours, 
neither the Astoria School District nor the North Coast Swim Club can afford the 
$25.00 per hour rate.  It is proposed an additional lane rental fee for youth swim 
teams to practice be added to the fee resolution in the amount of $5.00 per lane 
per hour effective November 8, 2016, contingent upon the youth swim team 
renting lap-lane space for the purpose of practicing a minimum of 100 hours a 
year, and all participants purchasing a monthly or daily pass.  Following this 
increase, it is proposed that the Youth Swim Team Lane Rental Fee be 
increased to $10.00 per lane per hour effective November 1, 2017. A subsequent 
increase request will be brought to the City Council next year. It is recommended 
that Council authorize this fee schedule amendment in order to increase youth 
swim team's access to the Astoria Aquatic Center. 

 
Item 6(c): Aquatic Center Use Agreement between Tongue Point Job Corps Center 

and the City of Astoria (Parks) 
 

The mission of the Astoria Parks and Recreation Department is to provide 
lifelong learning, wellness, and well-being through recreational opportunities and 
is dedicated to the preservation of natural resources, open spaces and facilities  



Page 5 of 5 

that inspire and bring neighbors together.  The Tongue Point Job Corps Center 
also understands the benefits of recreation for youth and adolescents; therefore, 
they have contacted the City of Astoria’s Parks and Recreation Department to 
partner in increasing access to the Astoria Aquatic Center for its students.  In 
order to accommodate the Tongue Point Job Corps Center’s use of the Aquatic 
Center, a Pool Use Agreement has been drafted and approved by the City 
Attorney that provides the students’ admission to the Astoria Aquatic Center 
without charge.  In return, the Tongue Point Job Corps Center will pay the City of 
Astoria the "youth drop-in" admission cost for each service rendered on a 
quarterly basis.  It is recommended that Council authorize the Pool Use 
Agreement with the Tongue Point Job Corps Center. 

 
Item 6(d): Consultant Services – Library Roof Replacement (Library) 
 

On February 19, 2016 McBride Architecture provided the City of Astoria an 
evaluation of the current Library Roof and Mechanical Systems.  The findings 
suggest an overwhelming need to replace the current roof.  The City Council 
approved $280,000 for roof replacement in the adopted budget beginning July 1, 
2016.  Library Director Jimmy Pearson, in consultation with Public Works Director 
Ken Cook, requested and received an updated proposal from McBride 
Architecture for management of the project.  The amount for these services is 
$17,900.  McBride will manage the project to include budgeting, develop all 
documents for bidding and provide construction documentation.  Please refer to 
the full proposal for further details.  As recommended by the consultant, the 
project would need to be bid in February/March of 2017 for a target of May 2017 
for construction and completion.  It is anticipated that the authorization to bid will 
be brought to Council in early 2017 with funds available in the Capital 
Improvement Fund.  McBride Architecture was previously engaged by the City for 
replacement of the City Hall roof in 2009.  It is recommended that Council 
authorize the Contract for Personal Services to initiate the Library Roof 
Replacement project.   

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Item 8(a): ORS 192.660(2)(h) – Legal Counsel 
 

The City Council will recess to executive session to consult with counsel 
concerning legal rights and duties regarding current litigation or litigation likely to 
be filed.   

 
Item 8(b): ORS 192.660(2)(i) – Performance Evaluations of Public Officers and 

Employees 
 

The City Council will meet in executive session to discuss a performance 
evaluation. 



 

Page 1 of 5 City Council Journal of Proceedings 
 October 3, 2016 

CITY OF ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS 
City Council Chambers  
October 3, 2016 
 
A regular meeting of the Astoria Common Council was held at the above place at the hour of 7:00 pm.  

Councilors Present: Nemlowill, Warr, Price, Mayor LaMear, and Ward 2 is vacant. 

Councilors Excused: None 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Estes, Community Development Director Cronin, Parks and Recreation Director 
Cosby, Finance Director Brooks, Fire Chief Ames, Police Chief Johnston, Public Works Director Cook, and City 
Attorney Henningsgaard. The meeting is recorded and will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, Inc. 
 
REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 

Item 3(a): Councilor Warr had no reports. 
 

Item 3(b): Councilor Price reported that she attended several sessions at the League of Oregon 
Cities Conference in Salem. At one of the sessions, Senator Johnson and three of her colleagues spoke about 
the prospects and challenges of getting a transportation package in 2017. The clear message was that if 
Oregon wants a transportation package, everyone must have some skin in the game. Nobody wants to pay for 
anything, but the list of projects totals more than $15 billion. This list of projects was developed during the 
committee’s statewide listening tour, which only came as close as Newport. The list includes road, marine, air, 
and rail projects. All members of the committee pleaded with those who attended the session to have robust 
discussions in their municipalities about what could be done locally and what each jurisdiction would expect 
from the State. She promised to help Senator Johnson schedule a meeting in the north coast area within the 
next couple of months. She hoped City Council would discuss transportation as well because it will become 
very important to Astoria over the coming years. She also reported that her next salonical was scheduled for 
Friday, October 7th at from 12:00 pm to 1:30 pm in the Waldorf Room at City Hall. 
 

Item 3(c): Councilor Nemlowill reported that the League of Oregon Cities event was educational, 
fun, and thought provoking. She attended some classes on leadership, growth, innovative character compatible 
housing, and economic development. Most importantly, she attended a workshop that reaffirmed her desire to 
make community visioning and strategic planning a top priority for Astoria. She read the following quote by 
Michael Gara, former Town Manager of Bridgewater, Nova Scotia, Canada: “If you don’t know what you want to 
be, then you have no control over what you’ll end up being. You won’t know until it’s too late if you like how 
you’ve turned out.” 
 

Item 3(d): Mayor LaMear reported that City Council always picks up a great deal of information at 
the League of Oregon Cities Conference. She most enjoyed the session that discussed legislative priorities for 
2017. The legislature has some big issues to handle, including the transportation package, Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS), and comprehensive property tax reforms. 
 
CHANGES TO AGENDA: There were no changes. 
 
Mayor LaMear presented Alana Garner with a certificate honoring Ms. Garner for her service and devotion as 
Executive Director of the Astoria Downtown Historic District Association (ADHDA). She proclaimed October 4, 
2016 as Alana Garner Day. 
 
Alana Garner thanked City Council and said her three years with the ADHDA had been a wonderful experience. 
She would be moving to La Grande, Oregon to get her Master’s Degree in historic preservation and economic 
development. It was a pleasure working with the Councilors and the City. 
 
  



 

Page 2 of 5 City Council Journal of Proceedings 
 October 3, 2016 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

Item 5(a) Update on Construction of New Aerial Fire Truck 
 
Fire Chief Ames gave a PowerPoint presentation on the status of the construction of the new aerial fire truck. 
He reviewed the work done during each week of construction and described several components of the truck 
and its equipment. He answered questions about the color of the truck and noted that Staff chose the nicest 
and least expensive color. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill acknowledged and thanked Chief Ames for facilitating this project. 
 
Councilor Warr said he saw a brand new pumper truck in town about a week ago. He asked if the truck was in 
Astoria for training purposes. Chief Ames said no, the pumper truck was a demonstration truck on tour along 
the coast to show municipalities what the manufacturer has available. 
 
Celia Davis asked what aspects of the new truck were unique to Astoria’s needs. Chief Ames said the truck 
has a dual axle rear end and two sets of stabilizing jacks instead of a tripod to accommodate stopping on hills. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
The following items were presented on the Consent Calendar:  

6(a) City Council Minutes of 9/6/16 
6(b) Finance Department Status Report 
6(c) Fire Department Status Report 
6(d) Spur 14 Waterline – Revised Contract Amendment for Construction Engineering Services (Public 

Works) 
6(e) 16th Street CSO Separation Project – Payment Adjustment No. 6 (Public Works) 
6(f) Authorization to Award Contract to ArborPro, Inc., for Tree Inventory and Condition Services in Astoria 

Parks and Open Spaces (Parks) 
 
Councilor Price requested that Item 6(b) be removed for further discussion. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to approve Items 
6(a), (c), (d), (e), and (f) on the Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, 
Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None.  Ward 2 is vacant. 
 

Item 6(b): Finance Department Status Report 
 
Councilor Price confirmed that the 13 Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Injury Reports 
had been filed within the calendar year. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Price, seconded by Councilor Warr, to approve Item 6(b) on 
the Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Nemlowill, and Mayor 
LaMear; Nays: None.  Ward 2 is vacant. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Item 7(a): Liquor License Application from Michael Cameron-Lattek, doing business as Street 
14 Café, Located at 1410 Commercial Street, for an Additional Privilege for an Off-
Premises Sales License (Finance) 

 
A Liquor License Application has been filed by Michael Cameron-Lattek, doing business as Street 14 Café, 
Located at 1410 Commercial Street, Astoria. The application is for an Additional Privilege for an Off-Premises 
Sales License. The appropriate departments have reviewed the application and it is recommended that Council 
consider approval of the application. 
 



 

Page 3 of 5 City Council Journal of Proceedings 
 October 3, 2016 

Councilor Nemlowill recused herself from voting because the Applicant is a client of her family’s business, 
Fort George Brewery. 
 
Mayor LaMear confirmed there were no public comments. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Price , seconded by Councilor Warr, to approve the Liquor 
License Application by Michael Cameron-Lattek, dba Street 14 Cafe. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: 
Councilors Price, Warr, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None.  Ward 2 is vacant. 
 

Item 7(b): Ordinance No. 16-06 Readopting Local Fuel Tax (2nd Reading and Adoption) (Finance) 
 
This proposed ordinance received its first reading at the September 19, 2016 City Council meeting.  Ordinance 
No. 07-02, which was adopted August 20, 2007, pertains to the provision for administration, enforcement and 
collection of three cents per gallon business license tax on motor vehicle fuel dealers. The use of tax revenue is 
for the construction, reconstruction, improvement, repair, maintenance, operation and use of City owned roads 
and streets within the City of Astoria, roads and streets for which the City is contractually or legally obligated to 
operate and maintain, or roads and streets for which the City has accepted responsibility under 
intergovernmental agreement.  The City of Astoria and the City of Warrenton adopted three cents per gallon 
business license tax ordinances at the same time and both will sunset in 2017, unless re-adopted. Astoria and 
Warrenton desire to continue the road tax for road maintenance by readopting their respective ordinances. The 
City of Astoria has an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Oregon Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) for the collection and administration of the City's fuel tax which was amended in May, 2016 to coincide 
with City of Warrenton's IGA ending September, 2016. Both Agreements have been extended through 
September 30, 2021. It is advantageous to have the ordinance renewal coincide with the timeline for the IGA 
with ODOT and early readoption by both Councils is being sought. City Attorney Henningsgaard prepared the 
attached readoption ordinance. It is recommended that the City Council hold the second reading and adopt the 
proposed ordinance readopting a motor vehicle fuel tax. 
 
Director Brooks conducted the second reading of the ordinance. 
 
Mayor LaMear confirmed there were no public comments. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Price to adopt the ordinance 
readopting a motor vehicle fuel tax. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Nemlowill, and 
Mayor LaMear; Nays: None.  Ward 2 is vacant. 
 

Item 7(c): Resolution No. 16-19 Declaring a Vacancy for the Position of Councilor, Ward 2 (City 
Council) 

 
Drew Herzig was elected to the position of Councilor Ward 2 for a four year term expiring on December 31, 
2016.  Mr. Herzig has submitted his resignation as Councilor of Ward 2 effective September 13, 2016. Pursuant 
to Astoria City Charter Sections 4.8 and 4.9, the Astoria City Council may appoint an individual to the position or 
declare that a vacancy exists in the position of Councilor, Ward 2 and that said vacancy will be filled at the next 
available election, November 8, 2016. It is recommended that Council either determine to make an appointment 
or consider the attached resolution stating the vacancy will be filled at the next available election, November 8, 
2016. 
 
Councilor Price believed Tom Brownson should be appointed immediately because he was running unopposed 
for the position and had demonstrated a willingness and commitment to serve. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Price to appoint Tom Brownson to the vacant Ward 2 City 
Council seat and immediately administer the Oath of Office. Motion died for lack of a second.  
 
Councilor Warr said in the past, City Council had always decided to wait for the next election to fill vacancies. 
He believed this would be the best course of action. Councilor Nemlowill agreed. 
 
Councilor Price wanted to know why Councilors Warr and Nemlowill disagreed with her. The candidate is 
present, he is running unopposed, and City Council cannot move forward with a full Council. 



 

Page 4 of 5 City Council Journal of Proceedings 
 October 3, 2016 

 
Councilor Nemlowill stated she did not believe there was any urgency. City Council is well aware of Staff’s time 
and it is not necessary to bring on a new Councilor before January. Staff takes time to give new Councilors 
tours and educate them about the various departments and she did not believe this was urgent. 
 
Councilor Price said she and Councilor Nemlowill took their tours in November and this year’s tour could be 
postponed until after the November election so that the Ward 4 representative could tour at the same time. She 
asked if the City Manager considered it a burden on Staff time to fill the seat now. City Manager Estes 
responded that was a City Council issue. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill to adopt the resolution 
stating the vacancy will be filled at the next available election, November 8, 2016. Motion carried 3 to 1. Ayes: 
Councilors Warr, Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: Councilor Price.  Ward 2 is vacant. 
 

Item 7(d): Parklet Proposal (Community Development) 
 
On August 3, 2015, Council unanimously approved the launch of the Parklet Pilot Program. City staff has 
received an application from a business owner regarding the potential of a “parklet” to be located within a 
designated, on street parking space in downtown Astoria. The application and supporting documents are 
attached. A parklet will facilitate the use of public space for small, outdoor, commercial spaces in the street 
rights of way adjacent to storefront locations. In many cities that permit this activity, the street becomes an 
activated and inviting community space. In downtowns or older commercial areas where public space might be 
underutilized, parklets are an urban design tool to provide more outdoor seating, landscaping, and to inject 
more activity into the streetscape. Since parklets involve the private use of a public right of way, City staff 
(including ADHDA) has drawn on work done in other cities, including Sacramento and Portland, to develop and 
adapt several policies which were adopted by Council August 3, 2015. The ADHDA Executive Director and 
Board President reviewed the revised proposal and reiterated their support. As a reminder, once a property 
owner proposes a parklet project, staff would review the project and then present the proposal with a 
recommendation to the City Council for final approval. It is recommended that Council approve the proposed 
parklet with the conditions contained in the memorandum. 
 
City Planner Nancy Ferber reminded that this Parklet Program is in the pilot stage, so the policy could still be 
changed as needed. She displayed a timeline of the project and gave a brief history of the proposal. She gave a 
detailed description of the proposed parklet area, noting the City’s design and installation requirements and 
features of the proposed parklet. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill asked why the Applicant was willing to give up a parking space in front of his business. 
 
Jim Defeo, Astoria Coffee House, said he believed there were a lot of parking spaces in town and he rents 
seven parking spaces for his customers. 
 
Mayor LaMear said she has seen quite a few parklets in other areas and most of them have a platform with 
tables and chairs. This proposed parklet looks very different. 
 
Mr. Defeo noted there would be some built in benches and room to add tables. 
 
Councilor Price stated the parklet has been available for viewing for several weeks. This is great for a pilot 
project because of the different elements this parklet contains. People can see how the various elements react 
in the weather. She appreciated the reclaimed wood and believed the bench looked interesting because it 
resembled the benches that were stolen from the former Safeway site.  
 
Mayor LaMear confirmed the Applicant had the option to include tables and called for public comments.  
 
Jeff Daly said he helped design the parklet, which will be seven feet deep and built within the confines of the 
parking spots. The flooring will be made of recycled plastic water bottles with a row of black tiles separating the 
flooring from the curb. Tables may be added. The bench is a pier from underneath the 14th Street Dock. After 
the installation is complete, improvements and additions can be made. As part of this pilot program, he was 
looking for involvement from the City and the public about what works and what does not work. He has worked 



 

Page 5 of 5 City Council Journal of Proceedings 
 October 3, 2016 

with the ADHDA and City planners to develop this concept and see how it works. The community can learn from 
this project to establish a great program. He noted that all of the wood and some of the copper is recycled. The 
concept was to utilize free materials. The materials are finished with water resistant products so the colors will 
not fade. Mr. Defeo will maintain the parklet, so there will be no expense to the City. He believed the parklet 
would be exactly as Michelle Reeves described, a place that gives people the opportunity to discover the 
businesses on the street and allows people to socialize. He believed the parklet would be a great addition to the 
City and he hoped to see more. 
 
Mayor LaMear asked if the benches would only face one direction. Mr. Daily confirmed the benches would face 
the curb. The four-foot tall retaining wall would protect people in the parklet from vehicle traffic. Everything will 
be modular so they can be quickly and easily be removed at any time for any reason. He believed the agenda 
packet included about 150 signatures from people who supported this concept. Everyone he has spoken to has 
been enthusiastic about the parklet. San Francisco has parking issues, but also has parklets that bring people 
together and make neighborhoods more unified. This was his goal, to get people downtown during the day and 
night to celebrate the local businesses. 
 
Mayor LaMear said she supported parklets, but she had never seen one like the one being proposed. Mr. Daily 
said most parklets use painted materials, but the guidelines in this pilot program requests that recycled 
materials be used. 
 
Mayor LaMear asked if parklets in other areas had limited widths. Mr. Daily said yes, a parklet takes up one 
parking spot, which is approximately 18 feet by 7 feet. This parklet will not take up that entire space, so there 
will still be plenty of clearance. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Price, seconded by Councilor Warr to approve the proposed 
parklet with the conditions contained in the memorandum. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, 
Warr,  Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: None.  Ward 2 is vacant. 
 
NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 
 
There was none. 
 
City Council recessed to convene the Astoria Development Commission meeting at 7:43 pm. The City Council 
meeting reconvened at 8:01 and went into Executive Session. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Item 9(a): ORS 192.660(2)(i) – Performance Evaluations of Public Officers and Employees 
 
The City Council will meet in Executive Session to discuss a performance evaluation. 
 

Item 9(b): ORS 192.660(2)(d) – Labor Negotiation Consultations 
 
The City Council will meet in Executive Session to consult with members of its labor contract negotiating team. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:05 pm. 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Finance Director City Manager  
 



  

Page 1 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  October 17, 2016 

CITY OF ASTORIA      CITY COUNCIL JOURNAL OF PROCEEDINGS  
City Council Chambers 
October 17, 2016 
 
A regular meeting of the Astoria Common Council was held at the above place at the hour of 7:00 pm. 
 
Councilors Present: Nemlowill, Warr, Price, Mayor LaMear, and Ward 2 vacant. 
 
Councilors Excused: None 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Estes, Community Development Director Cronin, Parks and Recreation Director 
Cosby, Finance Director Brooks, Fire Chief Ames, Deputy Police Chief Halverson, Public Works Director Cook, 
Assistant City Engineer Crater, Library Director Pearson, and City Attorney Henningsgaard. The meeting is 
recorded and will be transcribed by ABC Transcription Services, Inc.  
 
The new Library Director, Jimmy Pearson, briefly introduced himself. 
 
REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 

Item 3(a): Councilor Warr had no report. 
 
 Item 3(b): Councilor Price reported that she attended the Economic Development Strategy meeting. 
She reminded that October 18th was the last day to register to vote. She was happy to see so many people 
prepare for the recent storm. Her salonical the previous week was a bit bigger than her last salonical. Many real 
estate professionals attended to learn about the Community Development Director’s projects. Attendees also 
requested the City do a better job of getting information to the public. She believed Staff was trying very hard and 
she was glad the Community Development Department now had a Facebook page. She did not know what more 
the City could do to provide notices to people. She suggested Staff collect email addresses or put a blog on the 
City’s website. She planned to ask Staff to provide updates about projects that residents might not be aware of, 
like the library, which has not been discussed by Council since July. She wanted the City to update people more 
regularly, especially on projects the public has been involved in. Her salonical also included an hour-long 
discussion about the proposed amendments to the Development Code. There will be a work session on 
Wednesday, October 19th at 6:30 pm in Council Chambers to discuss the amendments on accessory dwelling 
units and tiny homes. People at the salonical had the same concerns that Councilors have and wanted to know 
what needs these amendments would address. Some people believed the amendments would place the burden 
to resolve the housing issue in Astoria on old established neighborhoods. She hoped everyone interested would 
attend the Planning Commission’s work session to share thoughts, ideas, and concerns. This is an important 
and detailed issue. 
 
 Item 3(c): Councilor Nemlowill reported she was glad Director Pearson has come to Astoria. She 
said she felt good about the upcoming local election and the candidates for City Council and she looked forward 
to working with the newly elected officials. 
 
 Item 3(d): Mayor LaMear reported that she attended a luncheon on the Coast Guard Cutter Alert. The 
Alert will be dry docked in Seattle for two months, during which time half of the crew will be in Astoria providing 
volunteer services to the City. The crew will provide 200 man-hours per week and she has tasked Director 
Cosby with making sure the City utilizes the crews’ services. The Coast Guard has done so many wonderful 
things in the community. She believed the Daily Astorian needed to publish an article about all of the 
volunteerism that the Coast Guard has provided. She also attended Vintage Hardware’s grand opening. The 
hardware store recently moved from Englund Marine to the former Bargains Galore site on Marine Drive next to 
Sears. Vintage Hardware sells windows, doors, and all kinds of hardware. She encouraged everyone to see 
what they have done at the new location. 
 
CHANGES TO AGENDA – No changes. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
The following items were presented on the Consent Calendar: 



  

Page 2 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  October 17, 2016 

5(a) City Council Minutes of 9/19/16 
5(b) Boards and Commission Minutes 

(1) Historic Landmarks Commission Meeting of 8/16/16 
(2) Planning Commission Meeting of 7/26/16 
(3) Planning Commission Meeting of 8/2/16 

5(c) 17th Street Dock Division of State Lands (DSL) Lease Renewal (Public Works) 
5(d) Accept Grant from Oregon State Parks and Recreation Department to Support Site-Specific Park Plan 

at Shively and McClure Parks (Parks) 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to approve the 
Consent Calendar. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; 
Nays: None. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Item 6(a): Cancellation of Public Hearing for Plan Amendment: Article 3 Accessory Dwelling 
Units (Community Development) 

 
Item 6(b): Cancellation of Public Hearing for Plan Amendment: Article 9 Administrative 

Procedures (Community Development)  
 

A public hearing notice for the October 17, 2016 City Council meeting regarding two separate Astoria 
Development Code amendment applications was mailed anticipating the Planning Commission's review would 
be complete in time for this October 17th meeting; however, the hearing remains open at the Planning 
Commission. These City Council hearings will be rescheduled after the Astoria Planning Commission has made 
a recommendation. Any required mailed notices and newspaper notice will be provided once the hearing date 
has been set. The Astoria Planning Commission will hold a work session for further discussion on A16-02 -
Article 3: Accessory Dwelling Units on Wednesday, October 19, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers and 
will continue the discussion at their regular meeting on October 25, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 
No action is required by the City Council; however, the items had to be listed on the Council agenda since the 
public notice was provided. 
 

Item 6(c): 50th Street Trestle Repair Project – Authorization to Award Construction Contract 
(Public Works) 

 
OBEC Consulting Engineers recently completed an inspection of the trestles and track associated with the City 
owned railroad right-of-way to determine condition and repair priorities. As part of this effort, timber trestles east 
of 39th Street were inspected to ensure appropriate repairs could be made to facilitate continued use of the 
River Trail. The inspection found that a number of structural members supporting the River Trail walkway over 
the 50th Street Trestle need immediate replacement. The City coordinated with OBEC to develop a scope of 
work for the needed repairs. Staff used the informal Request for Quotes (RFQ) process since the work was 
estimated to cost less than $100,000. The following competitive quotes for the project have been received: 
 

Contractor Total Quote 
Columbia Dockworks $14,588 
Mark Baldwin Construction $27,800 
Bergerson Construction $31,446 

 
Funding for this project is available in the Riverwalk – Trestles improvement budget of the Promote Astoria 
Fund. Additional trestle repairs will be required prior to trolley operation in 2017. The contract has been approved 
as-to-form by the City Attorney. It is recommended that Council authorize the award of a construction contract to 
Columbia Dockworks, Inc., in the amount of $14,588 for the 50th Street Trestle Repair Project. 
 
Councilor Price asked if the City always had to accept the lowest bid. City Manager Estes explained that the 
purchasing code language provides a way to implement scoring criteria in their Request for Proposals (RFP). 
This approach was used when the Parks Department completed its tree inventory, for example. However, RFQs 



  

Page 3 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  October 17, 2016 

do require the City to hire the lowest bidder, but the quote must include everything the City has asked for. The 
City can also request sole sourcing of a contractor. 
 
Councilor Price asked if City Council had ever considered giving extra weight to local contractors. City Manager 
Estes said this has been discussed several times over the years. Many times, the City would be unable to get 
the products and services it needed and prices could be a factor. Councilor Price noted that Council and Staff 
were trying to promote economic development by supporting local businesses. 
 
Mayor LaMear stated she was concerned because Columbia Dockworks bid was about half of the other bids. 
Assistant City Engineer Crater said he had the same concern and contacted Columbia Dockworks to make sure 
their RFQ was not missing something. He reviewed the project with the company and confirmed that they 
understood the scope of work. He discussed the company’s methods and learned they have done this work 
before. He did not have any concerns. All three of the firms that submitted RFQs for this project are local 
companies. Staff can distribute RFQs to contractors that the City has relationships with and Staff does consider 
local contractors. He confirmed that Columbia Dockworks has worked for the City before under the name of 
Tidewater. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Price to authorize the award 
of a construction contract to Columbia Dockworks, Inc., in the amount of $14,588 for the 50th Street Trestle 
Repair Project. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Nemlowill, and Mayor LaMear; Nays: 
None. 
 

Item 6(d): 2017 Trolley Trestle Repair Project – Contract for Design Services (Public Works) 
 
The City of Astoria has approximately 4.7 miles of railroad track and eight timber trestles formerly owned and 
operated by Burlington Northern Railroad from the Port of Astoria to Tongue Point. The Astoria Riverfront Trolley 
currently operates on approximately three miles of this track and over four of the trestles. The Trolley provides 
passenger service from Portway Street to 39th Street. Due to the age of the railroad infrastructure, the effort 
required to maintain the track and structures has been increasing rapidly. This year OBEC Consulting Engineers 
inspected the trestles and track to identify condition and determine repair priorities. At the July 18, 2016 Council 
Meeting, City staff presented three options for managing the maintenance needs of the Trolley and River Trail 
infrastructure. Council approved a hybrid approach, which focuses available funding resources on maintaining 
the structures and track west of 39th Street (active rail) and provides minimal repairs and more frequent 
inspection to ensure safe operation of the River Trail east of 39th Street. Immediate maintenance needs for the 
trestles and track will need to be addressed prior to Trolley operation in 2017. OBEC provided a design services 
proposal to assist the City with completion of this maintenance work. Their scope of work includes design, permit 
review, bid support and construction assistance. This work is proposed to be completed for the not-to-exceed 
amount of $23,122. The immediate maintenance needs, including trestles and track repair, are estimated at 
around $320,000 for the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year. Staff recommends funding the immediate repairs using the 
Promote Astoria Fund. The City Attorney has reviewed the contract and approved it as to form. It is 
recommended that Council authorize award of a Personal Services Contract to OBEC Consulting Engineers in 
the amount of $23,122 for design services for the 2017 Trolley Trestle Repair Project. 
 
City Manager Estes stated ongoing repairs would be needed over the next ten years, so the City has begun to 
discuss sharing the costs of these repairs with the Riverfront Trolley Association. While funding is currently 
available for the design services, a budget amendment would need to be approved prior to authorizing a 
construction contract. 
 
Mayor LaMear asked if Staff had any idea how much the construction would cost. Staff responded costs would 
be approximately $320,000. A supplemental budget would need to be approved through a public hearing so the 
funds could be re-appropriated to the correct line item within the Promote Astoria Fund. Staff confirmed this 
would not reduce funding for other projects, but would reduce the Ending Fund Balance carried forward into the 
next fiscal year. 
 
Councilor Price asked if the landowners along the Riverwalk in that area could be inspired to assist. City 
Manager Estes said many of the waterfront businesses are already maintaining their own docks. The areas 
north of the trolley trestle are private properties. 
 



  

Page 4 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  October 17, 2016 

Mayor LaMear asked if the trolley would need to be shut down during construction. City Manager Estes 
explained that this work must be completed in order for the trolley to operate in 2017. Construction work will be 
scheduled during the trolley’s off-season. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill said over the summer, ODOT had threatened to close the trestles if emergency repairs 
were not completed. Staff did some patchwork, but she wanted to know where the City stood with ODOT. She 
also wanted to know if ODOT would be satisfied if City Council approves this contract and continues to move 
forward with the necessary repairs. City Manager Estes clarified that ODOT was concerned about the street-
ends, not the trolley trestle. Work on the street-ends is currently ongoing. ODOT refrained from shutting down 
the trolley at those street-ends because the City moved quickly and continued to conduct frequent inspections of 
the street-ends. The contract being considered now is for work on areas in between the street-ends. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill understood this was a tough pill to swallow, but the Riverwalk is of the utmost priority. City 
Council has no other choice but to award the contract. City Manager Estes added that the street-end repairs 
were paid for out of the Capital Improvement Fund. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill believed Promote Astoria Funds were a very appropriate use to keep the trolley going. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Nemlowill, seconded by Councilor Warr to authorize award of a 
Personal Services Contract to OBEC Consulting Engineers in the amount of $23,122 for design services for the 
2017 Trolley Trestle Repair Project. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Nemlowill, and 
Mayor LaMear; Nays: None. 
 

Item 6(e): Agreement for City Attorney Legal Services (City Council) 
 
On September 6, 2016, an item regarding City Attorney Legal Services was deferred to a subsequent meeting, 
as Attorney Henningsgaard was unable to attend. The provisions contained in the agreement for legal services 
between Blair Henningsgaard and the City of Astoria remains unchanged from what was included in the 
September 6th packet. The agreement replaces the Legal Services agreement dated December 20, 2010. The 
compensation section includes an annual increase of $3,000, from $84,000 to $87,000, for routine services, and 
non-routine matters will increase $10 per hour from $180 per hour to $190 per hour. No other changes are 
contained in this agreement. The effective date is August 1, 2016. The Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget includes a 
budget of $87,000 for legal services in the City Attorney department of the General Fund. It is recommended that 
Council consider approval of the revised agreement. 
 
Councilor Price stated she did not see that the nondiscrimination clause had been included and asked if it 
belonged in a legal services agreement. City Attorney Henningsgaard said ethical rules require him to refrain 
from discriminating, but the clause could still be added to the agreement. 
 
City Council Action: Motion made by Councilor Warr, seconded by Councilor Nemlowill, to approve the revised 
agreement for legal services. Motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Councilors Price, Warr, Nemlowill, and Mayor 
LaMear; Nays: None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 
 
There was none. 
 
Mayor LaMear recessed the regular City Council meeting to convene the Executive Session at 7:29 pm. 
Subsequent to that action, the Mayor reopened the Regular Session for additional discussion at 7:30 pm. 
 
Mayor LaMear asked City Council to consider scheduling a special meeting in October or November to discuss 
the Quarterly Funding Report. 
 
Councilor Price reminded that at their September 6th meeting, City Council had discussed scheduling a work 
session after the Quarterly Funding Report was published. The next fiscal year’s budget is generally discussed 
beginning in February. However, she wanted the discussion to begin earlier so that staffing challenges, trestle 
repairs, labor negotiations, and other stresses on the budget could be addressed. She wanted City Council to 
think of creative ways to invest in Staff next year. When she asked about this in September, all of the Councilors 
nodded yes to a work session. Therefore, she wanted to set a date. 



  

Page 5 of 5  City Council Journal of Proceedings 
  October 17, 2016 

 
Councilor Nemlowill asked what kind of timeline Staff usually needed to create a budget. City Manager Estes 
explained that he has been working with the Finance and Parks Departments to review the current budget for 
the Parks Department because maintaining the current level of service will trigger an end-of-year fund balance 
transfer, even though additional funds were allocated when the budget was approved. The Parks Master Plan 
identifies priorities and funding options that would allow services to continue or expand. However, Director Cosby 
is also in the process of determining what needs to be cut from the budget so the Department can operate within 
its means. This will be ready to discuss in November and Staff would like to get the information to City Council 
as soon as possible. He believed the current year’s budget needed to be resolved before discussing the next 
fiscal year. Staff usually begins developing a budget for the next fiscal year in December by estimating future tax 
revenues.  
 
Councilor Warr said City Council only has three employees, the City Attorney, the Municipal Court Judge, and 
the City Manager. Staffing is a function of the City Manager and it would be a disservice to him if Council starts 
encroaching into his realm. City Manager Estes’ Staff does not work for City Council. 
 
Councilor Price agreed, but said she also believed that as policy makers, City Council has a responsibility to be 
diligent when allocating the taxpayer’s dollars. City Council should brainstorm to help make sure the City has 
enough Staff to provide quality services or let their constituents know that the fiscal reality is that the City will be 
unable to do some of the things it has done before. Staff is already thinking about this issue, so she believed it 
would be useful to bring City Council into the discussion early. 
 
Councilor Warr stated he wanted City Council to be very conscience about the difference between policy and 
micromanagement. Councilor Price agreed. 
 
Councilor Nemlowill said she supported a goal setting session in January. She believed the goal setting worked 
well when each department head presented their department’s goals and upcoming projects. The presentations 
inform City Council and it is important for Council to discuss priorities. Money is scarce and she preferred to 
discuss the issues in January. 
 
Mayor LaMear said she believed City Council should wait until after the election so the new Councilors can state 
what they believe is important. 
 
Councilor Price reminded that City Council does not make decisions in work sessions and goal setting is very 
dependent on money. She just wanted to start discussions early so that Council could get a head start because 
the next fiscal year will be difficult. However, she would accept the will of the Council. 
 
Mayor LaMear agreed it was very important for Council to hear from each department head. Goal setting allows 
Council to learn about each department’s priorities and what they could do without if the budget had to be cut. 
She confirmed that the consensus of Council was to wait until January. 
 
Mayor LaMear recessed the regular City Council meeting to convene the Executive Session at 7:43 pm. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Item 8(a): ORS192.660(2)(i) – Performance Evaluations of Public Officers and Employees  
 
The City Council will meet in Executive Session to discuss a performance evaluation. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:43 pm.  
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Finance Director City Manager  



 
  
     
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
October 21, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE VEHICLE FOR POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
As part of the Fiscal Year 2016-17 budget, the Astoria Police had requested budgetary 
resources to purchase one vehicle this fiscal year. That request was part of the 
approved budget.  This vehicle will replace a 2011 Chevy Tahoe 2WD Police Pursuit 
Vehicle (PPV). The vehicle has 110,429 miles.  
 
Staff obtained prices on a 2017 Ford Police Interceptor Utility.  Prices were obtained 
using the state cooperative purchasing program.  Gresham Ford, provided a quote of 
$29,058.63.  This price includes features added by Ford Motor Company including pre-
wiring for some of the lights and siren, and manufactured light housings that do not 
require custom work.  These added items were recommended by our vehicle up-fitter to 
provide better value to the city while reducing time, material and labor costs when the 
vehicle is set up with emergency equipment.  The Ford Police Interceptor will provide a 
slightly smaller interior and lower ride height than the Tahoe. It is an all wheel drive 
platform and not a four wheel drive platform.  This provides both positive and negative 
traits in public safety usage.  Staff has been looking at the Ford Police Interceptor Utility 
for several years and purchased one as part of the FY 2015-2016 budget.  Due to 
vendor issues, the vehicle’s deployment was delayed so there is no substantive 
feedback regarding its performance as applied to the Astoria Police Department.  
 
The Ford Police Interceptor Utility was part of the testing processes conducted by the 
Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Office and the Michigan State Police.  These vehicle 
testing processes are the gold standard for police package testing.  They include 
measured performance on a road course, acceleration, braking, ergonomics, and a 
detailed breakdown of vehicle attributes.  The Ford Police Interceptor Utility and the 
Chevy Tahoe PPV are comparable vehicles in most aspects of performance. 
Ergonomics/Comfort is the one area that the Tahoe platform is far and above every 
other police vehicle tested by either process.  The Police Interceptor Utility rates well, 
the Tahoe is considerably above all other vehicles.  



 
 
 
For several years the industry rumor mill indicated that GM would be discontinuing the 
Tahoe as a police vehicle.  Staff had been keeping a keen eye on vehicle testing, 
driving other agencies Ford Police Interceptor Utilities, attending trade events, and 
using every opportunity to examine the Ford SUV.  In 2015 GM made several changes 
to the Tahoe PPV that increased miles per gallon and some features that delayed the 
decision to move away from the Tahoe PPV.  The pricing trend of the Tahoe PPV is 
troubling. Given the price savings of nearly $10,000 between the two vehicles, staff 
cannot justify staying with the Tahoe PPV and recommends continuing with the 
purchase of the 2017 Ford Police Interceptor Utility.  
 
This item was included in the FY16-17 budget as a lease payment on new public safety 
vehicle. The Finance Department has budgeted spreading the purchase and set up of 
vehicles over two years.  This amount is included in the adopted budget.  A separate 
authorization will subsequently be requested for set up and equipment for the vehicles.  
If approved the vehicle acquisition and set up is expected to take approximately 3 
months before it is deployed.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve the purchase of a 2017 Ford Police 
Interceptor Utility from Gresham Ford.  
 

 
 

Eric Halverson 
Deputy Chief of Police 













 
 
 
 

October 31, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZATION TO REQUEST QUALIFICATIONS TO PRODUCE 

SITE-SPECIFIC PARK PLAN AT SHIVELY AND MCCLURE PARKS 
 
DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department’s Comprehensive Master Plan recommends 
completing site-specific park plans at several locations.  The process would allow the 
Department to plan for specific improvements and new development, as well as long 
term maintenance at each site.  The plans would assess alternative options for 
improvements and new development, and recommend the best option.  The planning 
process would involve input from the community, specify landscape features and park 
amenities to be developed or improved, and include cost estimates, funding strategies, 
and a timeframe for implementation. 
 
It was recommended that site master plans for Shively Park and McClure Park be 
prioritized.  During the community input process for the Parks and Recreation 
Comprehensive Master Plan, the public was asked to prioritize sites in need of master 
plans.  Shively Park ranked as the community’s highest priority and a need to balance 
the park’s rich history with a low maintenance and accessible design that meets the 
community’s needs.  McClure Park ranked as the second highest priority for site master 
plans with the community.  The Friends of McClure Park have been active in fundraising 
to make improvements and add amenities.  A master plan for McClure Park would 
ensure that new development is supported by the community and Parks and Recreation 
Department and that it can be cared for and adequately maintained into the future. 
 
The Oregon Parks and Recreation Department Local Government Grant Program 
provides Small Community Planning Grants to support site-specific park and outdoor 
recreation plans.  These planning efforts target a specific site that has been identified in 
a system-wide park and recreation plan.  Site-specific planning projects include public 
outreach and an analysis process that leads to a detailed plan for full development or 
redevelopment a park or other recreational-use site.  The plan must address priorities 
identified in a system-wide or comprehensive plan.  The planning process must include 
the adoption of the planning document through the local land use approval process. 



The City of Astoria was awarded the Oregon Parks and Recreation Department Local 
Government Grant of $40,000 to support funding site plans for Shively Park and 
McClure Park and approve the Local Government Grant Program Agreement.  On 
October 17, 2016 City Council accepted the grant and committed the required 40% 
match, in the amount of $16,000 cash budgeted in the Capital Improvement Fund and 
in-kind management and administration contribution of $11,000.  The tentative project 
timeline is as follows:  
 
October, 2016: Notice to proceed from OPRD. 
December, 2016: Designation of a project manager and procurement of a consultant. 
January, 2017: Project kickoff, public notice of upcoming meeting dates. 
February, 2017: Initial public meeting to collect input. 
March, 2017: Development of design alternatives. 
April, 2017: Public meetings to collect input on design alternatives. 
May, 2017: Selection of preferred concepts for McClure and Shively Parks; 

development of implementation and funding strategy. 
June, 2017: Adoption of plan documents for McClure and Shively Park. 
 
To stay on track with this tentative timeline, the Parks and Recreation Department 
seeks the City Council’s authorization to request qualifications for a consultant or team 
of consultants specializing in community engagement, gathering, consolidating, and 
prioritizing community input, planning and landscape design and/or architecture.  A 
selection panel comprised of Parks and Recreation Department staff, Community 
Development staff, neighbors of Shively Park, and a representative from the Friends of 
McClure Park will evaluate and rank each statement of qualifications submitted.  The 
consultant will be evaluated and ranked based on proven experience, expertise, and 
technical merit for the requested services.  After a preferred consultant is chosen, they 
will be asked to develop a project management plan, budget and schedule for the 
project.  This scope of work will be negotiated with staff.  If an acceptable plan, budget, 
schedule, and contract cannot be developed, the selection panel will meet and select 
another consultant from the original RFQ submittals and restart negotiations.   Once a 
final scope is developed, the contract will be brought to Council for consideration.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that City Council authorize the Parks and Recreation Department to 
request qualifications to complete site-plans at Shively Park and McClure Park.    
 
       

By: _____________________________ 
 Angela Cosby  
 Director of Parks & Recreation 
 































































































































 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 
 

 
October 31, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AMENDING FEE SCHEDULE FOR ASTORIA AQUATIC 

CENTER 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The mission of the Astoria Parks and Recreation Department is to provide lifelong 
learning, wellness, and well-being through recreational opportunities and is dedicated to 
the preservation of natural resources, open spaces and facilities that inspire and bring 
neighbors together. To assist in achieving the goal of increasing recreational 
opportunities for youth it is proposed that a rental rate for youth swim teams to practice 
be adopted.  
 
Swimming provides recreation, and therefore better health. It offers safety from 
drowning, the opportunity for mastering a skill and a place to interact socially. Children 
who learn to swim early, not only have a safety benefit non-swimming children lack, but 
an opportunity to enrich their lives through recreation. Incorporating a lifelong leisure 
activity such as swimming at a young age will improve the children’s health as only one-
quarter (24.8%) of youth are engaged in moderate-to-vigorous physical activity for at 
least 60 minutes daily. While obesity and the onset of type 2 Diabetes in youth 
continues to rise and school and community based youth athletics are often a child’s 
only outlet for physical activity. 
 
The Astoria Aquatic Center partners with the Astoria School District and the North Coast 
Swim Club to provide space within the lap pool for their youth swim team members to 
practice. The Astoria Aquatic Center’s current lane rental fee is $25.00 per lane per 
hour, however with daily practices lasting several hours neither the Astoria School 
District nor the North Coast Swim Club can afford the $25.00 per hour rate.  
 
In order to keep the Astoria Aquatic Center accessible to our community’s youth, it is 
suggested that in addition to our current $25 per lane per hour rental fee an additional 
rental option specifically for youth swim teams to practice be added to the fee resolution 
at a reduced rate of $5 per lane per hour. It is proposed that this additional rate be 
effective November 8, 2016, and that the Youth Swim Team Lane Rental be contingent 



 

upon the rented space being used by youth swim teams for the purpose of practicing for 
a minimum of one hundred hours per year, and all participants purchasing a monthly or 
daily pass. Following this increase, it is proposed that the Youth Swim Team Lane 
Rental Fee be increased to $10 per lane per hour effective November 1, 2017.  A 
subsequent increase request will be brought to Council next year. 
 
The current and proposed Astoria Aquatic Center Fees are shown below:  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that City Council authorize this fee schedule edit for this year’s 
proposal, in order to increase youth swim team’s access to the Astoria Aquatic Center.   
 
 
 
      By: _________________________ 
 Angela Cosby  
 Director of Parks & Recreation 



-1- 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-______ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ASTORIA RELATING TO FEES FOR SERVICES.   
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ASTORIA: 
 
Section 1 Authority for Fees.  The various departments of the City incur expenses in 
searching for and furnishing copies of records, reports and documents, and providing special 
services for private individuals and private concerns.  The City Council deems it advisable, for 
the efficient conduct of the affairs of the various departments, that reasonable fees be charged 
for furnishing such records, reports, documents and services.  A deposit may be requested in 
advance of providing the requested information. 
 
Section 2. Schedule of Fees.  The fee schedules for the various Departments of the City of 
Astoria are attached to this Resolution and identified as follows: 
 

INDEX 
 

Schedule Department   Pages 
 

A Building Inspection .......................................A1 – A7 
B City Administration .......................................    B1 

Community Development Department .........C1 – C2 
Fire Department ...........................................    D1 
Library ..........................................................    E1 

C 
D 
E 
F Parks and Recreation Department 

• Aquatic Center Fees .........................    F1 
• Maritime Memorial Fees ....................    F2 
• Ocean View Cemetery Fees .............    F3 
• Recreation Division Rental Fees .......    F4 
• Astoria Column..................................    F5 

G Police Department .......................................    G1 
Public Works/Engineering Department ........H1 – H2 H 

 
Section 3. Application of Fees.  The fees shall be charged whether the request for the 
service is made in person, by telephone or in writing. 
 
Section 4. Exceptions to the Payment.  No law enforcement agency, Civil Service Commission 
or department of the Armed Forces is required to pay the fees established in Section 1 of this 
resolution.   
 
Section 5. Fees Remitted to Finance Department.  Fees collected under the provisions of this 
resolution shall be remitted to the Finance Department.  The Finance Director shall deposit the 
fees received in the appropriate established fund. 
 
Section 6. Repeal.  Resolution No. 15-29 adopted December 7, 2015 is repealed.  
 
Section 7. Effective Date.  The provisions of this resolution shall be effective November 8, 2016.  
 



-2- 

 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL THIS 7TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2016. 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS 7TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2016. 
 
 
   
            Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
City Manager 
 
 
 
ROLL CALL ON ADOPTION YEA NAY ABSENT 
Commissioner Nemlowill  
 Ward 2 Vacant  
 Price  
 Warr  
Mayor LaMear   



 
Building Inspection Page A1 

 

Building Inspection 
Schedule A 

 
 
 

 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES  

Fee Description Fees 

Plan Check Fees 25% of mechanical permit fees when 
plan review is performed 

Minimum Permit Fee $65.00 

Permit Fees for One- and Two-Family Dwellings:  

 Mechanical Equipment:*  

 Clothes dryer, exhaust fan, kitchen hood $15.00 each 

 Fuel burning (incl. vents, chimney, flues, etc) $30.00 each 

 All other appliances and equipment $30.00 each 

 Gas Piping:  

 One to four outlets 
Additional outlets (each) 

$12.00 
$  2.50 each 

 Alteration to mechanical equipment or system $24.00 

*Mechanical equipment for one- and two-family dwellings includes, but is 
not limited to:  wood stove, fireplace insert, furnace and its attached add-
ons (e.g. cooling coil and air filter), pellet stove, heat pump condenser unit, 
log lighter, portions of boiler not regulated by the State, pool heater, sauna. 

 

The following items are included in the base fee, separate fees will not be 
assessed:  filter, volume damper, fresh air intakes, electric water heater 
regulated by plumbing code, duct work, control units or thermostats and 
similar equipment. 

 

Permit Fees for Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family 
Residential: 
Use the total value of mechanical construction work to calculate the 
Mechanical permit fee. 

 

 $1 - $2,000 $65.00 minimum 

 $2,001 - $25,000 $65.00 for the first $2,000 plus $7.80 
for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof 

 $25,001 - $50,000 $244.40 for the first $25,000 plus 
$5.85 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 

 $50,001 - $100,000 $390.65 for the first $50,000 plus 
$3.50 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 

 $100,001 and up $565.65 for the first $100,000 plus 
$3.50 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 



 
Building Inspection Page A2 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES  

Fee Description Fees 

Additional Plan Review Fee 
For consultation, coordination and inquiries related to changes, additions or 
revisions after initial application submittal. 

$65.00/hr (minimum charge $65.00) 

Inspections for Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated 
 

$65.00/hr 
($65.00 minimum) 

Inspections Outside of Normal Business Hours $65.00/hr   
($65.00 minimum) 

Permit Renewal (Expired Permit Reinstatement Fee) 
Fee for renewal of a permit that has been expired for one year or less, 
provided no changes have been made in the original plans and 
specifications for the work.  A permit may only be renewed once. 
 
Permits that have been expired longer than one year cannot be renewed.  
You must reapply for new permits. 

½ of total permit fees using permit 
rates at time of renewal 

Investigation Fee – Expired Permits 
Hourly rate charged for research, travel time and time spent on site 
ensuring fire and life safety requirements are satisfied. 
 
Fee is in addition to permit renewal fee. 

$65.00/hr 
(minimum charge $65.00) 

Re-inspection Fee $65.00 each 

Investigation Fee A 
Low effort to determine compliance. 
 

$97.50 

Investigation Fee B 
Medium effort to gain compliance. Stop Work order posted.  Applicant 
obtains required permit within 10 business days. 

$130.00 

Investigation Fee C 
High effort to gain compliance.  Applicant failed to meet deadline or has had 
more than one documented violation in 12 months for starting work without 
permits. 

$250.00 or hourly rate whichever is 
greater. 

State Surcharge and Training Fees* 
*The amount of the State surcharge is established by the State of Oregon 
on building permit fees, electrical permit fees, mechanical permit fees, 
plumbing permit fees, manufactured home permit fees, grading fees, and 
the hourly fees charged under the Master Permit program.  The surcharge 
is subject to change by the State and is collected by the City and passed 
through to the State. 
 
(12 percent as of October, 2010) 

Per State established fee 



 
Building Inspection Page A3 

 
CITY OF ASTORIA 

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES 
Fee Description Fees 
Plan Check Fees 25% of plumbing permit fees when 

plan review is performed 
Minimum Permit Fee $65.00 
Commercial, Industrial and Multi-Family Residential Permits, and 
Alterations to Existing One and Two-Family Dwelling Systems* 

$175.00  
 

*Fixtures include: water closet, lavatory, tub/shower, sink, bidet, laundry 
tubs, disposal, dishwasher, clothes washer, water heater, floor sink/drain, 
through drain, drinking fountain, hose bib, sump pump/ejector, urinal, roof 
drain/overflow, catch basin, interceptor/grease trap, dental units and 
receptors. 

$20.00 per fixture 

 One or Two-Family Dwelling, New Construction:* 
Fee includes first 100 feet of water, storm and sewer service 

 

 One bathroom $213.00 

 Two bathrooms $282.00 

 Three bathrooms $351.00 

 Each additional bathroom above three & kitchen above one 
 
Fixture 

$69.00 
 
$20.00 each 

*Base fee includes:  kitchen, hose bibs, icemakers, underfloor low point 
drains, and rain drain packages that include piping, gutters, downspouts, 
and perimeter systems. 

 

Additional Plan Review Fee 
For consultation, coordination and inquiries related to changes, additions or 
revisions after initial application submittal. 

$65.00/hr 
(minimum charge $65.00) 

Expired Application Processing Fee 
Hourly rate charged for actual time spent processing and reviewing 
applications for which a permit is never issued. 
 
Credit is given for paid plan check fees. 

$65.00/hr 
(minimum charge $65.00) 

Water Heater Permit, One and Two-Family Residential Only 
Replacement of water heater of similar size and location that it is replacing. 
(Includes one inspection) 

$65.00 

Inspections for Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated $65.00/ea 
Inspections Outside of Normal Business Hours $65.00/hr (1.5 hr minimum) 
Medical Gas System 
Calculate the total value of system equipment and installation costs, 
including but not limited to inlets, outlets, fixtures and appliances. Apply the 
value of work to the medical gas system permit fee table below. 

 

$1 - $2,000 $65.00 minimum 

$2,001 - $25,000 
$65.00 for the first $2,000 plus $7.80 
for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof 

$25,001 - $50,000 
$244.40 for the first $25,000 plus 
$5.85 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 

$50,001 - $100,000 
$390.65 for the first $50,000 plus 
$3.50 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 

$100,001 and up 
$565.65 for the first $100,000 plus 
$3.50 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 

 
 
 



 
Building Inspection Page A4 

 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
PLUMBING PERMIT FEES 

Fee Description Fees 

Miscellaneous Permits:  
Reverse plumbing $61.00 
Solar units (potable water) $65.00 
Swimming pool piping to equipment $65.00 

Permit Renewal (Expired Permit Reinstatement Fee) 
Fee for renewal of a permit that has been expired for one year or less, 
provided no changes have been made in the original plans and 
specifications for the work.  A permit may only be renewed once. 
 
Permits that have been expired longer than one year cannot be renewed. 
You must reapply for new permits. 

½ of total permit fees using permit 
rates at time of renewal 

Investigation Fee – Expired Permit 
Hourly rate charged for research, travel time and time spent on site ensuring 
fire and life safety requirements are satisfied. 
 
Fee is in addition to permit renewal fee. 

$65.00/hr 
 

Re-inspection Fee $65.00/ea 

Removal, Abandonment, or Cap Off of Fixtures as Listed Above $ per fixture 

Sanitary Service:  

 First 100 feet $48.00 

 Each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $26.00 

Storm Sewer Service:  

First 100 feet $48.00 

Each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $26.00 

Water Service:  

First 100 feet $48.00 

Each additional 100 feet or fraction thereof $26.00 

Investigation Fee A 
Low effort to determine compliance. 

$97.50 

Investigation Fee B 
Medium effort to gain compliance.  Stop Work Order posted.  Applicant 
obtains required permit within 10 business days. 

$130.00 

Investigation Fee C 
High effort to gain compliance.  Applicant failed to meet deadline or has had 
more than one documented violation in 12 months for starting work without 
permits. 

$250.00 or hourly rate whichever is 
greater. 

State Surcharge and Training Fees* 
*The amount of the State surcharge is established by the State of Oregon 
on building permit fees, electrical permit fees, mechanical permit fees, 
plumbing permit fees, manufactured home permit fees, grading fees, and 
the hourly fees charged under the Master Permit program.  The surcharge is 
subject to change by the State and is collected by the City and passed 
through to the State. 
 
(12 percent as of October, 2010) 

Per State established fee. 



 
Building Inspection Page A5 

 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
STRUCTURAL PERMIT FEES 

Fee Description Fee 

Building Permit Fees: 
 
The International Code Council Building Valuation Data Table, 
current as of April 1 each year, is used to calculate the project 
value and is based on the type of construction and proposed 
building use.  Project value is then applied to the table below to 
determine the building permit fee. 

 

Use total value of construction work determined above to calculate 
the Building Permit Fee below: 

 

 $1 - $2,000 $65.00 minimum  fee 

 $2,001 - $25,000 $65.00 for the first $2,000 plus $10.53 
for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof 

 $25,001 - $50,000 $307.19 for the first $25,000 plus 
$7.90 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 

 $50,001 - $100,000 $504.69 for the first $50,000 plus 
$5.27 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 
 
 

     $100,001 and up 
*Definition of Valuation:  The valuation to be used in computing the permit 
fee and plan check fee shall be the total value of all construction work for 
which the permit is issued, as well as all finish work, painting, roofing, 
electrical, plumbing, heating, air conditioning, elevators, fire extinguishing 
systems and other permanent work or equipment, and the contractor’s profit 
as determined by the Building Official. 

$768.19 for the first $100,000 plus 
$4.39 for each additional $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 

Building Plan Check Fee 65% of building permit fees 

Manufactured Dwelling Permits:  

 Installation permit  
Fee includes: concrete slab, code compliant runners or foundations, 
electrical feeder, first 100 lineal feet of plumbing connections, all cross-
over connections and Administrative fee. 

$190.00* includes Administrative fee 
 

  •*Accessory structure fees will be assessed based on the value of 
construction determined under the Building Permit Fee section above. 

 

 •Utility connections beyond 100 lineal feet will be assessed separate 
plumbing fees determined under the Plumbing Permit, Plan Check & 
Inspection Fee section of this Schedule. 

 

Additional Plan Review Fee 
For consultation, coordination and inquiries related to changes, additions or 
revisions after initial application submittal. 

$65.00/hr 
One hour minimum 

Alternative Materials and Methods 
Hourly rate charged per person involved in review. 

$65.00/hr 

Building Demolition Permit Fee Apply Building Permit Fees (above) 
based on total project value.  Minimum 
fee $65.00/hr.  One hour minimum. 



 
Building Inspection Page A6 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
STRUCTURAL PERMIT FEES 

Fee Description Fee 

Residential Fire Sprinklers 
Fee includes inspections and plan review 

 

Fee determined by square footage of work covered.  

 0 to 2,000 sq ft $150.00 

 2,001 to 3600 sq ft $200.00 

 3,601 to 7,200 sq ft $300.00 

 >7,200 sq ft $400.00 

Expired Application Processing Fee 
Hourly rate charged for actual time spent processing and reviewing 
applications for permits that are never issued.  
 
Credit is given for paid plan check fees. 

$65.00/hr 

Fire/Life Safety (F/LS) Plan Check Fee 40% of building permit fees when F/LS 
plan review is required  

Foundation Only Permit 
 

Apply Building Permit fees (above) 
based on 20% of total project value + 
deferred fee 

Inspections for Which No Fee is Specifically Indicated 
 

$65.00/hr 
One hour minimum 

Inspections Outside of Normal Business Hours $65.00/hr 
One hour minimum 

Permit Extension (first one free) $50.00 

Permit Renewal (Expired Permit Reinstatement Fee) 
Fee for renewal of a permit that has been expired for one year or less, 
provided no changes have been made in the original plans and specifications 
for the work.  A permit may only be renewed once. 
 
Permits that have been expired longer than one year cannot be renewed, 
you must reapply for new permits. 
 

½ of total permit fees using permit 
rates at time of renewal 

Investigation Fee – Expired Permits 
Hourly rate charged for research, travel time and time spent on site ensuring 
fire and life safety requirements are satisfied. 
 
Fee is in addition to permit renewal fee. 

$65.00/hr 

Phased Permit Fee 
Coordination fee charged in addition to normal plan review and permit fees; 
base fee includes required predevelopment meeting. 
 
Fee assessed on each phase of a project 

$275.00 + 10% of the total building 
permit fee for each phase of work.  
Not to exceed $1,500 for each phase  

Re-inspection Fee $65.00/hr 

Change of Occupancy Permit/No other work being done $65.00/hr 

Commercial Deferred Submittal Fee   65% of the value of the building permit 
fee calculated & using the value of the 
deferred portion + $150 



 
Building Inspection Page A7 

 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
STRUCTURAL PERMIT FEES 

Fee Description Fee 

Residential Deferred Submittal Fee 65% of the value of the building permit 
fee calculated & using the value of the 
deferred portion + $150 

Solar Installation Permit 
 
 Installations in compliance with section 305.4 of the Oregon 
 Solar Installation Specialty Code 
 
 All other installations 

*Valuation includes structural elements of solar panels including 
racking, mounting elements, rails, and the cost of labor to install. 
Valuation does not include the cost of solar equipment, including 
collector panels and inverters. 
 
Separate electrical fees also apply. 

$99.00 includes one inspection 
 
Apply building permit fees (above) 
 
Additional Inspections $65 each 

Temporary Certificate of Occupancy – Residential – first 30 day - free $65.00 

Temporary Certificate of Occupancy – Commercial – first 30 day - free $100.00 

Appeal to City Council 
 

$25.00 

School District Construction Excise Tax 
(Authorized by ORS 320.170 thru ORS 320.189) 
 
Applies to construction within Astoria School District in the City of Astoria. 
 
. 

The construction excise tax is assessed 
as a dollar rate per square foot of 
construction which is collected by the 
City of Astoria and forwarded to the 
school district assessing the tax for 
capital improvement project funding.   
 

Investigation Fee A  
Low effort  to deter-mine compliance. 

$97.50 

Investigation Fee B 
Medium effort to gain compliance. Stop Work order posted. Applicant obtains 
required permit within 10 business days 

$130.00 

Investigation Fee C 
High effort to gain compliance. Applicant failed to meet deadline or 
has had more than one  documented violation in 12 months for starting 
work without permits. 

$250.00 or hourly rate whichever is 
greater 

State Surcharge and Training Fees* 
*The amount of the State surcharge is established by the State of Oregon on 
building permit fees, electrical permit fees, mechanical permit fees, plumbing 
permit fees, manufactured home permit fees, grading fees, and the hourly fees 
charged under the Master Permit program.  The surcharge is subject to change 
by the State and is collected by the City and passed through to the State. 
 
(12 percent as of October, 2010) 

Per State established fee. 



 
City Administration Page B1 

 

City Administration 
Schedule B 

 

 
Astoria City Code ............................................................................... $ 30.00 
 
Budget Detail ..................................................................................... $ 8.00 
 
Budget Document .............................................................................. $ 8.00 
 
City Council agendas and minutes subscription rate by mail ............. $ 3.50/issue or 
 $ 42.00/year 
 By e-mail ...................................................................................... No charge 
(Effective 1/1/98 - no charge to press, government agencies, 
or one per Neighborhood Association) 
 
Copy of any code or publication purchased by the City for  
resale ................................................................................................. $ 0.30/page 
 
Copy of any ordinance, resolution or report, already prepared 
and stock on hand, or photocopy....................................................... $ 0.30/page 
 
Copy of tape recording of meeting ..................................................... $ 15.00/tape 
 
NSF (Non-Sufficient Fund) Check Fee .............................................. $ 15.00 
 
One-time, special event liquor license application ............................. $ 25.00 
 
Parking Lot Fees 
 13th Street Parking Lot .............................................................. $ 30.00/month 
 US Bank Parking Lot Spaces..................................................... $ 27.00/month 
 
Record search and review for exempt material  ................................ $ 15.00 to 
(hourly wage plus fringe benefits) $ 30.00/hour 
 
Transportation Services Vehicle Fee ................................................. $ 35.00/vehicle 
 
Transportation Services Vehicle Driver Application ($35.00) 
plus processing fee ($15.00) ............................................................. $ 50.00 

 
 



 
Community Development Department Page C1 

 

Community Development Department 
Schedule C 

 

 
 
Astoria Planning Commission, Historic Landmarks ........................... $ 3.50/issue or 
Commission, or Design Review Committee agendas  $ 42.00/year 
and minutes subscription rate by mail 
 By e-mail ...................................................................................... No charge 
(No charge to press, government agencies, or one per  
Neighborhood Association). 
 
Copy of Development Code............................................................... $ 35.00 
 
Copy of Comprehensive Plan ............................................................ $ 35.00 
 
Copy of Land Use & Zoning Map (approximately 6 square feet) ....... $ 6.00 
 
Copy of Land Use & Zoning Map (approximately 20 square feet) ..... $ 20.00 
 
Postage and handling for mailing Development Code or 
Comprehensive Plan, each ............................................................... $ 10.00 
 
Postage and handling for mailing 20 square foot Zoning map ........... $ 3.50 
 
Copy of audio tapes, each ................................................................. $ 20.00 
 
Copy of CD’s, each ............................................................................ $ 10.00 
 
Permit Applications 
 
Accessory Dwelling Unit Permit ......................................................... $ 50.00 
 
Amendment to Comprehensive Plan or Development Code ............. $ 400.00 
 
Amendment to Existing Permit .......................................................... Same fee as 
 existing permit fee 
 
Appeal ............................................................................................... $250.00 
 
Class B Home Occupation ................................................................ $100.00 
 
Conditional Use  ................................................................................ $ 250.00 
 
Conditional Use – Temporary Use Renewal ...................................... $ 100.00 
 
Demolition or Moving (Historic) .......................................................... $100.00 



 
Community Development Department Page C2 

 
Design Review ................................................................................... $250.00 
 
Exterior Alteration (Historic) ............................................................... $100.00 
 
Historic Designation ........................................................................... $ 50.00 
 
Lot Line Adjustment ........................................................................... $ 50.00 
 
Major or Minor Partition (in addition to fees noted in  
Development Code 13.720) ............................................................... $100.00 + actual costs 
 
Measure 37 Claim Application ........................................................... $ 250.00 
 
Miscellaneous Review ....................................................................... $ 100.00 Admin 

 .......................................................................  $250.00 APC/HLC 
 
New Construction (Historic) ............................................................... $ 100.00 
 
Parking Exemption ............................................................................ $ 100.00 
 
Permit Extensions .............................................................................. $ 100.00 
 
Planned Development ....................................................................... $300.00 + actual costs 
 
Retail Street Vendor .......................................................................... $100.00 
 
Satellite Dish/Commercial ................................................................. $ 100.00 
 
Sign Permits (not requiring building permit) ....................................... $ 10.00 - $40.00 
 
Subdivision (in addition to fees noted in Development Code 
13.720) .............................................................................................. $150.00 + actual costs 
 
Variance (Administrative or for Planning Commission) ...................... $ 150.00 Admin 
  ...................... $250.00 APC 
 
Wireless Communication Facility Application .................................... $3,000.00 
 
Wireless Communication Facility additional non-refundable fee for  
After-the-Fact Application .................................................................. $1,000.00 



 
Fire Department Page D1 

 

Fire Department 
Schedule D 

 

 
Any Fire Department record (including fire report/ 
investigation report .................................................................................. $ 10.00 
 
Burn barrel permit fee, initial inspection by Department for 
2 year permit ........................................................................................... $ 50.00 
Renewal of permit for additional 2 years thereafter................................. $ 35.00 
 
Special burn permit fee-issues for no more than a one week period ...... $ 35.00 
 
The Fire Department with offer fire safety inspection to all City 
businesses free of charge once every other year.  If inspection of a 
business results in findings of fire hazards, 
A second inspection to survey mitigation of hazard ................................ $ 25.00 
If a third inspection is necessary to check for hazards ............................ $ 50.00 
 
The City of Astoria will administer a cost-recovery program to 
recover costs from those incidents that require services  
from the Astoria Fire Department on its transportation route sand in 
areas where there is no other fire service protection. 
 
Residents, business owners, and/or taxpayers of the City of Astoria 
and its service-contract areas (Tongue Point Job Corps), and any 
citizens of areas where the Astoria Fire Department has mutual aid 
agreements will not be billed for services as described in this 
program. 
 
Rates for recovering costs shall be those established in accordance 
with the Oregon State Fire Marshal’s standardized costs schedule 
as specified in ORS 478.310(2)(a), and as hereinafter amended. 
 
Fees will be based on both direct (apparatus, personnel, and 
miscellaneous supplies and services) and indirect (billing and 
collection costs).  No fees will be charged for the direct provision of 
emergency medical treatment and supplies. 
 
Charges to all parties will include a minimum 30-minute response 
charge. 



 
Astoria Public Library Page E1 

 

Astoria Public Library 
Schedule E 

 

 
1. Overdue Materials 
 
 (a) After due date, items are rented for 50 cents per day (25 cents for 

children's books) until the 60th day.   
(b) Audiovisual materials (CDs and videos) are rented at $1.50 per day after 

the seventh night. 
 
2. Subscribing Library Family Fee (persons who reside outside of Astoria city limits). 
 
 (a) $33.00 for a six-month period. 
 (b) $60.00 for a 12-month period. 
 (c) If family moves out of Astoria metropolitan area, a refund of $3.00 per 

unused full month will be approved, less any fees owed. 
 (d) $15.00 for a 12-month "Kids' Cards" for children 12 years and under to 

borrow children's materials only. 
 (e) Non-resident owners of property within the City, and members of their 

households, are eligible to have free library borrowers cards by annually 
showing proof of having paid Astoria property taxes. 

 
3. Interlibrary Loan - $10.00 per item received by mail. 
 
4. Microfilm Printer - 15 cents per sheet. 
 
5. Laminated Borrowers Card Replacement - $6.00. 
 
6. Damage Fees 
 
 (a) Slight damage - $3.00. 

(b) Extensive damage or loss - replacement cost plus $3.00 processing fee, 
or bring duplicate item. 

 
7. Transient Borrowers Privileges - (available to visitors staying in area motels, 

hotels, campgrounds and boat basins): 
 

(a) Transient borrower card - $25.00.   
(b) Deposit per item borrowed - $25.00. 

 
8. Flag Room Rental  
 

(a) Library Programs and Programs sponsored by the City of Astoria-room 
use is free. 

(b) Non-profit groups/organizations and private groups - $20.00 per hour. 
(c) Business and Commercial Entities Meetings - $35.00 per hour.  



 
Parks Department – Astoria Aquatic Center  Page F1 

 

Parks and Recreation Department 
Astoria Aquatic Center 

Schedule F1 
 

 
 

Drop In  
Youth  .................................................................................   
Adult  ..................................................................................   
Family .................................................................................   
 

 
$5.50 
$7.50 
$18.00 

Aquatic Center Monthly Pass 
Youth & Senior ...................................................................   
Family .................................................................................   
Adult ...................................................................................   
 

Reg. Rate Cont. ACH Rate 
 $50.00  $40.00 
 $60.00  $50.00 
 $80.00  $70.00 

Joint Aqua Center & Rec Center Monthly Pass 
Youth & Senior ...................................................................   
Adult  ..................................................................................   
Family .................................................................................   
 

Reg. Rate Cont. ACH Rate 
   N/A    N/A 
 $80.00  $70.00 
 $100.00  $90.00 

Punch Pass Redemption 
Youth  .................................................................................   
Adult  ..................................................................................   
Family .................................................................................   
*The sale of punch passes have been discontinued; however, 
previously sold passes are still honored at the listed 
redemption 
 

 
$5.00 
$7.00 
$18.00 
 
 

Swim Lessons  
Group Lessons ...................................................................   
Private Lessons ..................................................................   
 

 
$50.00 
$150.00 

Monthly Locker Rentals ...................................................   Reg. Rate Cont. ACH Rate 
 $15.00  $5.00 

Rentals/Misc. 
Lane rental (per lane, per hr.) ............................................   
*Includes admission for up to 5 individuals 
 

 
$25.00 
 
 
$5.00 Youth Swim Team Lane Rental (per lane, per hr) .............   

*Contingent upon youth swim team renting a minimum of 100 
hours of lap-lane space for the purpose of practicing per fiscal 
year, and all participants purchasing a monthly or daily pass 
(effective 11/8/16) 
 
After hours rental (per hr., min. 4 hrs.) ...............................   
Showers .............................................................................   
 

$175.00 
$3.00 
 

 
Towel Rental ......................................................................   
 
Birthday Party (lobby rental, 20 guests) .............................   

Reg. Rate Cont. ACH Rate 
 $3.00  $0.00 
 
$150.00 

 
 



 
Parks Department – Astoria Maritime Memorial Page F2 

 
Parks and Recreation Department  

Astoria Maritime Memorial 
Schedule F2 

 

 
 
 

Fee for one engraved memorial 4" x 12"  
 Standard Fee without customized graphic ...................................... $500.00 
 Name of person limited to 18 characters, including spaces 

• Inscription is limited to 23 characters, including spaces 
• Optional: small stock graphic illustration or second line of 

Inscription limited to 23 characters, including spaces 
  
 

 
 
Fee for Customized Graphic/Art Work  ................................................. $150.00 

• Includes customized graphic illustration/artwork (other than stock 
artwork that has already been engraved on the Memorial Wall) 

 
 
 



 
Parks Department – Ocean View Cemetery  Page F3 

 

Parks and Recreation Department 
Oceanview Cemetery 

Schedule F3 
 

 
 

Graves-Ground Only (w/perpetual care) 
 Infant/Child plots .....................................................................  $212 

Block 68, Cremation only ........................................................  $390 
All other blocks .......................................................................  $1,169 
 
Interments 

 Adult (opening and closing) ....................................................  $1,169 
Cremation ...............................................................................  $584 
Cremated remains (Saturdays) ...............................................  $169 
Adult, Saturdays .....................................................................  $339 
Late funerals (after 3:00 pm) add'l/hr. .....................................  $68 
 
Disinterment 

 Adult .......................................................................................  $551 
Child under 7 ..........................................................................  $424 
Cremated remains removed  ..................................................  $169 
 
Liner and Installation 

 Liner Fee ................................................................................  $339 
 
Monument/Marker Permits 

 Monument Permit (Not over 62" in length) ..............................  $203 
Marker Permit-Double (2 people) ...........................................  $169 
Marker Permit-Single ..............................................................  $136 
Marker Permit-Veteran ...........................................................  $68 
Marker Permit-Baby grave cover ............................................  $85 
 
Casket Burial ..........................................................................  $2,812 
 
Cremation ...............................................................................  $1,110 
Other Work .............................................................................  Cost +25% 
Chapel Reservation ................................................................  $75/hr. 

 



 
Parks Department – Astoria Recreation Division Rental Fees Page F4 

 

Parks and Recreation Department 
Astoria Recreation Division Rental Fees 

Schedule F4 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FACILITY RENTALS Non-Profit 
Less than 25  
(Private Use) 

More than 25+ 
(Commercial/Event Use) 

Per 
Hour 

 1/2 
Day  Day 

Per 
Hour 

Per 1/2 
Day 

Per 
Day 

Per 
Hour 

Per 1/2 
Day 

Per 
Day 

Community Halls   
 

              
Shively Hall 50% off on weekdays $39 $109 $159 $69 $209 $299 

Alderbrook Hall 50% off on weekdays $29 $89 $119 $59 $179 $239 
ARC Classroom 50% off on weekdays $29 $89 $149 $69 $199 $319 
ARC East Wing 50% off on weekdays $89 $209 $349 $159 $299 $499 

Special Events/Park Rentals No Discount $45 $180 $360 $65 $260 $520 
Fields & Courts        

Tennis Courts 50% off on weekdays $19 $59 $99 $39 $119 $199 
Basketball Courts 50% off on weekdays $19 $59 $99 $39 $119 $199 

Fields   $12/hour/2 hour minimum 
Concession Stand Rental $75/day/site 

 



 
Parks Department – Astoria Column Page F5 

 
Parks and Recreation Department  

Astoria Column 
Schedule F5 

 

 
 
 

Annual Parking Pass ..............................$5.00 



 
Police Department Page G1 

 

Police Department 
Schedule G 

 

 
 Unless otherwise stated, Police Department hourly charges are 

billed in 30 minute increments.  Deposit prior to copying may be 
required. 

 
Arrest record, per name ..................................................................... $ 6.00 
 
Attorneys fees for consultation .......................................................... $150.00/hour 

 
Certified (notarized) copy of police records $5.00 for  
each page (single sheet or back-to-back) .......................................... $ 6.00 
 
Copy of audio recording minimum charge ......................................... $ 35.00/hour 
 
Copy of Communications Center log ................................................. $ 6.00/page 
 
Copy of photograph (4" x 5")  ............................................................ $ 6.00 
 
Copy of photograph (8" x 10")  .......................................................... $ 12.00 
 
Copy of police report  ........................................................................ $ 15.00 
 
Copy of video recording minimum charge ......................................... $ 35.00/hour 
 
Fingerprints for individuals who retain cards  .................................... $ 6.00/card 
 
Fingerprints forwarded by police  ....................................................... $ 17.00 
 
Additional fingerprint cards  ............................................................... $ 6.00/each 
 
Impound vehicle release  ................................................................... $ 100.00 
 
Police Officer – special events minimum charge ............................... $ 40.00/hour 
 Additional charge made for equipment and vehicle 
 
Staff review of public records............................................................. $ 35.00/hour 
 
Vehicle identification number inspection ............................................ $ 35.00 

 



 
Public Works/Engineering Department Page H1 

 

Public Works/Engineering 
Schedule H 

 

 
Application to Purchase City Property ............................................... $125.00 
 
Appraisal to Purchase City Property .................................................. $450.00 
 
Custom Mapping ............................................................................... $ 25.00/hour 
 Legal or letter size prints, each .................................................. $ 0.30 
 Precut 18" x 24" large format copies  ........................................ $ 3.00 
 Precut 24" x 36" large format copies ......................................... $ 5.00 
 Various size large format copies:  Per square foot .................... $ 1.00 

  
Disk copies of topo (3½ Floppy) ........................................................ $ 10.00 
 
Disk copies of topo (Zip Disk) ............................................................ $ 20.00 
 
Driveway permit ................................................................................. $ 20.00 
 
Grading and Erosion Control Permit Fees 
 Permits up to but not exceeding  .............   5,000 Square Feet ..... $ 20.00 
  ............. 10,000 Square Feet ..... $ 40.00 
  ............. 15,000 Square Feet ..... $ 60.00 
  ............. 20,000 Square Feet ..... $ 80.00 
  ............. 25,000 Square Feet ..... $ 100.00 
  ............. 30,000 Square Feet ..... $ 120.00 
  ............. 35,000 Square Feet ..... $ 140.00 
 Permits up to but not exceeding 1 acre .... 43,560 Square Feet ..... $160.00 
 Permits exceeding 1 acre ..........  ............. 43,560 Square Feet ..... $180.00 
 Permit extensions beyond 180 days   ......  ..................................... $ 10.00 
 
Garden permit -- on City Property ..................................................... $ 6.00 
 
License to Occupy ............................................................................. $125.00 
 
Petition to Vacate Right-of-Way ......................................................... $150.00 
 
Street Excavation Permit Fee and Deposit Fee: 
 
  Deposit 
 Paved street 1 to 25 square feet .............. $ 50.00 ................ $ 10.00 
  over 25 square feet ............. $100.00 ................ $ 10.00 
 $ 2.00 per sq. ft. 
 over 25 sq. ft 
 Graveled street ............................................ $ 30.00 ................ $ 10.00 
 



 
Public Works/Engineering Department Page H2 

Deposit to be returned upon satisfactory restoration of the street 
excavation.  Permits shall be furnished by the City of Astoria 
outlining the conditions of the permits established by the City 
Engineer.  Each permit shall be signed by the City Engineer. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 
Water and sewer fees are established in specific resolutions that 
are periodically updated and reissued.  Water and sewer 
resolutions and fee information are available from the Public Works 
Department at (503) 388-5173. 
 



 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 
 
  

 
October 31, 2016 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:  AQUATIC CENTER USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN TONGUE POINT 

JOB CORPS CENTER AND THE CITY OF ASTORIA   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Understanding the benefits of recreation for youth and adolescents the Tongue Point 
Job Corps Center has contacted the City of Astoria’s Parks and Recreation Department 
to partner in increasing access to the Astoria Aquatic Center for its students. 
 
An evidence based study “The Rationale for Recreation Services for Youth” published 
by the National Parks and Recreation Association in 2010 demonstrates that when 
adolescents are exposed to recreation, they experience short term, intermediate, and 
long outcomes with meaningful impacts.   
 
Short term outcomes of adolescents exposed to recreation activities are:  

• Increase self-awareness 
• Increase valuing of leisure 
• Increase personal responsibility toward healthy leisure 
• Increase positive forms of motivation 
• Increase ability to overcome constraints  
• Increase knowledge of resources in the community  

 
Intermediate outcomes of adolescents exposed to recreation activities are:  

• Decreased boredom and increased interests 
• Participation in new activities  
• Participation in healthy activities  

 
Long Term outcomes of adolescents exposed to recreation activities are:   

• Mitigate onset of substance use and reduce levels of substance use  
 
The study found that these short term, intermediate and long term outcomes 
accumulate to increase adolescent’s chances of successful maturation into productive 
adulthood and decreased the chance of adolescents becoming addicted.  



 

The mission of the Astoria Parks and Recreation Department is to provide lifelong 
learning, wellness, and well-being through recreational opportunities and is dedicated to 
the preservation of natural resources, open spaces and facilities that inspire and bring 
neighbors together. To assist in achieving the goal of increasing recreational opportunity 
for youth and to provide the students at the Tongue Point Job Corps Center with the 
outcomes and impacts of recreation it is proposed that Aquatic Center Use Agreement 
with Tongue Point Job Corps Center be adopted.   
 
A Pool Use Agreement has been drafted and approved by City Attorney Henningsgaard 
and provides students of Tongue Point Job Corps Center admission to the Astoria 
Aquatic Center without charge. In return, Tongue Point Job Corps Center will pay the 
City of Astoria the “youth drop-in” admission cost for each service rendered on a 
quarterly basis.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that City Council authorize this Pool Use Agreement with Tongue 
Point Job Corps. 
 
 
 
      By: _________________________ 
 Angela Cosby  
 Director of Parks & Recreation 



1 

4850-8926-7246.4 

 

Pool Use Agreement 
 

This Pool Use Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of   , 2016 
(the “Effective Date”), is by and between City of Astoria, Oregon (the “City”) and Tongue Point Job Corps 
Center (“Tongue Point”). 

 
The City operates and maintains a public swimming pool facility (the “Facility”) and charges fees 

for the use of the Facility. Tongue Point wishes to increase the access to swimming facilities for 
students of Tongue Point Job Corps by paying their usage fees as provided in this Agreement. The City 
is willing to allow Tongue Point to pay the fees for those students’ use of the Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set 

forth the City and Tongue Point (hereinafter, collectively, the “Parties”, or each, individually, a “Party”) 
agree as follows: 

 
1. Pool Use Program. The pool use program described below (the “Program”) will be available to 

“Qualified Users” from Tongue Point Job Corps.  For purposes of this agreement Qualified 
Users are students of Tongue Point Job Corps who have been identified by Tongue Point. The 
Program will operate as follows: 

 

A. The Facility will allow a Qualified User admission to the Facility without charge for any of the 
Astoria Aquatic Center’s standard “Drop-In”. While this Agreement is in effect, the City will bill 
Tongue Point for, and Tongue Point will pay, the amount such Qualified Users would have 
otherwise been charged for their Covered Swimming. The City will not charge Tongue Point 
more than the published Youth rates charged to the general public for Covered Swimming 
activities. If the City increases its published rates, it must provide Tongue Point written notice 
of such change at least 30 days before the City can begin charging Tongue Point at the 
increased rates. 

 
B. Before permitting any person to engage in Covered Swimming, the facility will require that 

person to provide a Tongue Point issued student ID. The facility will then verify they are a 
Qualified User by matching the name on a list provided by Tongue Point.  Tongue Point will notify 
the Facility, as necessary, if a student is no longer a Qualified User. 

 
C. The Program will follow the Astoria Aquatic Center’s normal business hours and will not 

interfere with designated swim times for other groups or organizations. 
 

D. The Program will not cover, and Tongue Point Job Corps will not pay for, swim lessons, 
private swim lessons, private parties, memberships, monthly passes, punch cards, food, 
drink or merchandise sold by the Astoria Aquatic Center. 

 
2. Fees and Billing. The City will invoice the Tongue Point Job Corps on a quarterly basis for the 

amounts Qualified Users would have otherwise been charged for their Covered Swimming during 
the previous quarter. With each quarterly billing invoice, the City will provide Tongue Point with a 



2 

4850-8926-7246.4 

 

report of Qualified User’s visits associated with the bill. Tongue Point will pay each invoice within 
30 days of receipt, unless it provides written notice to the Astoria Aquatic Center that it is 
contesting the invoice. 

 

3. Term, Termination and Survival. This Agreement shall commence as of the Effective Date and shall 
continue thereafter until terminated pursuant to this Section 3. Either Party may terminate this 
Agreement at any time without cause, effective upon written notice to the other Party, and without 
liability except for required payment for services rendered prior to the termination date. 

 

4. Independent Contractor. It is understood and acknowledged that the Program which the City 
provides under this Agreement will be in the nature and capacity of an independent contractor 
and not as an employee or agent of Tongue Point.  

 

5. Indemnification. To the extent allowed by the Oregon Constitution and within the limits of 
municipal liability set forth in ORS 30.272 and OR 20.273, the City shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Tongue Point and its officers, employees, and agents (collectively, ”Indemnified 
Party”) against all losses, damages, liabilities, claims, and expenses of whatever kind, including 
attorneys’ fees (collectively, “Losses”) arising out of any claim of a third party related to the 
Program or use of the Facility, and arising out of or occurring in connection with the negligence, 
willful misconduct, or breach of this Agreement by the City or its directors, officers, employees, 
and agents. The City shall not enter into any settlement with regard to any such Losses without 
Tongue Point’s or Indemnified Party’s prior written consent. 

 
Tongue Point and its trustees shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City its officers, 
employees, and agents (collectively, ”Indemnified Party against all losses, damages, liabilities, 
claims, and expenses of whatever kind, including attorneys’ fees (collectively, “Losses”) arising 
out of or resulting from any claim of a third party related to the Program or use of the Facility, 
and arising out of or occurring in connection with the negligence or willful misconduct of any 
qualified user. Tongue Point shall not enter into any settlement with regard to any such Losses 
without the City’s or the Indemnified Party’s prior written consent. 
 

6. Attorney’s Fees. To the extent a Party is required to seek enforcement of this Agreement or 
otherwise defend against an unsuccessful claim of breach, the unsuccessful party shall be liable for 
all attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the successful party to enforce the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

 

7. Compliance with Law. The Astoria Aquatic Center is in compliance with and shall comply with all 
applicable laws, regulations and ordinances. The Astoria Aquatic Center has and shall maintain in 
effect all the licenses, permissions, authorizations, consents and permits that it needs to carry out 
its obligations under this Agreement. 

 

8. Non-discrimination.  It is the policy of the City of Astoria that no person shall be denied the benefits 
of or be subject to unlawful discrimination in any City program, service, or activity on the grounds of 
age, disability, race, religion, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity and 
expression. Tongue Point shall comply with this policy with respect to this program. 



3 

4850-8926-7246.4 

 

 

9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to 
the subject matter contained herein, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous 
understandings, agreements, representations and warranties, both written and oral, regarding such 
subject matter. 

 

10.   Notices. All notices, requests, consents, claims, demands, waivers and other communications under 
this Agreement (each, a “Notice”, and with the correlative meaning “Notify”) must be in writing 
and addressed to the other Party at its address set forth below (or to such other address that the 
receiving Party may designate from time to time in accordance with this Section). Unless otherwise 
agreed herein, all Notices must be delivered by personal delivery, nationally recognized overnight 
courier or certified or registered mail (in each case, return receipt requested, postage prepaid). 
Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, a Notice is effective only (a) on receipt by the 
receiving Party; and (b) if the Party giving the Notice has complied with the requirements of this 
Section 11. 

 

Notice to Tongue Point: Tongue Point Job Corps Center 
37573 Old Highway 30 
Astoria, OR 97103.  
Email: Lickfold.Charity@jobcorps.org 
Attention: Charity Lickfold 

 
Notice to the City of Astoria City Manager 

1095 Duane Street 
Astoria, OR 97103 
Email:  bestes@astoria.or.us 
 Attention:  Brett Estes  

11.   Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction 
to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect 
any other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render unenforceable such term or 
provision in any other jurisdiction. 

 

12.   Amendments. No amendment to or modification of this Agreement is effective unless it is in writing 
and signed by each Party. 

 

13.   Waiver. No waiver by any Party of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless 
explicitly set forth in writing and signed by the Party so waiving. Except as otherwise set forth in this 
Agreement, no failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right, remedy, power or privilege 
arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single 
or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege. 

 

14.   Assignment. Neither party shall assign, transfer, delegate or subcontract any of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. Any 
purported assignment or delegation in violation of this Section 14 shall be null and void. No 

mailto:bestes@astoria.or.us


4 

4850-8926-7246.4 

 

assignment or delegation shall relieve the assigning or delegating party of any of its obligations 
hereunder. 

 

15.   Successors and Assigns. This Agreement is binding on and inures to the benefit of the Parties and 
their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 

16.   No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement benefits solely the Parties and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns and nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, confers on any 
third party any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by 
reason of this Agreement. 

 

17.   Choice of Law. This Agreement and all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement, are 
governed by, and are to be construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Oregon, without 
regard to the conflict of laws provisions thereof to the extent such principles or rules would 
require or permit the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than those of the State of 
Oregon.  Venue for any dispute concerning this agreement shall be the Circuit Court of the State 
of Oregon for Clatsop County. 

 

18.   Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which is deemed an 
original, but all of which together are deemed to be one and the same agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the 
Effective Date by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized. 

 

Tongue Point Job Corps Center  

By   

Name:   
 

Title:   
 
 
 
 

City of Astoria, Oregon 
 

By   
 

Name:   

Title:   






















	Agenda 11-7-16
	Agenda Memo 11-7-16
	5(a) CC Minutes 10-3-16
	5(b) CC Minutes 10-17-16
	5(c) Autho to Purchase APD Vehicle
	5(d) Server Replacements
	5(e) RFQ for Park Plan
	5(f) MOU for Indigent Defense Services
	6(a) Hearing and Ordinance First Amendment to AWURD
	6(b) Fee Resolution for Aquatic Center
	6(c) Tongue Point Aquatic Center Use Agreement
	6(d) Library Roof Project



